
 

For information relating to this meeting or to request a copy in another format or 
language please contact: 

Lisa Antrobus, Town Hall, Castle Circus, Torquay, TQ1 3DR  
01803 207087 

Email: governance.support@torbay.gov.uk 

www.torbay.gov.uk  

(1) 

 

Tuesday, 31 October 2017 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

A meeting of Standards Committee will be held on 
 

Wednesday, 8 November 2017 
 

commencing at 2.30 pm 
 

The meeting will be held in the Meadfoot Room, Town Hall, Castle Circus, 
Torquay, TQ1 3DR 

 
 

Members of the Committee 

Councillor Haddock 

Councillor Morey 

Councillor O'Dwyer 

Councillor Stocks 

 

Councillor Thomas (J) 

Councillor Thomas (D) 

Councillor Bye 

 

 

 

A prosperous and healthy Torbay 

mailto:governance.support@torbay.gov.uk
http://www.torbay.gov.uk/


(2) 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
AGENDA 

 
1.   Apologies  
 To receive apologies for absence, including notifications of any 

changes to the membership of the Committee. 
 

2.   Election of Chairman/woman  
 To elect a Chairman/woman for the meeting. 

 
3.   Minutes (Pages 4 - 5) 
 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of the 

Board held on 1 March 2017. 
 

4.   Declarations of interest 
 

 

(a)   To receive declarations of non pecuniary interests in respect of 
items on this agenda 

 

 For reference:  Having declared their non pecuniary interest 
members may remain in the meeting and speak and, vote on the 
matter in question.  A completed disclosure of interests form should 
be returned to the Clerk before the conclusion of the meeting. 
 

(b)   To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect 
of items on this agenda 

 

 For reference:  Where a Member has a disclosable pecuniary 
interest he/she must leave the meeting during consideration of the 
item.  However, the Member may remain in the meeting to make 
representations, answer questions or give evidence if the public 
have a right to do so, but having done so the Member must then 
immediately leave the meeting, may not vote and must not 
improperly seek to influence the outcome of the matter.  A 
completed disclosure of interests form should be returned to the 
Clerk before the conclusion of the meeting. 
 
(Please Note:  If Members and Officers wish to seek advice on any 
potential interests they may have, they should contact Governance 
Support or Legal Services prior to the meeting.) 
 

5.   Urgent items  
 To consider any other items that the Chairman decides are urgent. 

 
6.   Communications  
 To receive any communications or announcements from the 

Chairman of the Committee. 
 

7.   Hearing Sub-Committee (Page 6) 
 To establish a Hearing Sub-Committee. 

 
   



(3) 

8.   Setting the Standard: Strategic Plan, Annual Report 2016-17 
and Forward Plan 2017-19 

(Pages 7 - 41) 

 To consider a report produced by the Committee on Standards in 
Public Life. 
 



 
 

Minutes of the Standards Committee 
 

1 March 2017 
 

-: Present :- 
 

Councillors Brooks, Morey, O'Dwyer, Stocks and Thomas (J) 
 
 

 
5. Election of Chairman/woman  

 
Councillor Stocks was elected Chairwoman for the meeting. 
 

6. Apologies  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Haddock and Thomas (D). 
 

7. Minutes  
 
The Minutes of the meeting of the Standards Committee held on 13 July 2016 
were confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

8. Striking the Balance - Upholding the Seven Principles of Public Life in 
Regulation  
 
Members noted a report that had been compiled by the Committee on Standards 
in Public Life.  The Assistant Director of Corporate and Business Services 
informed Members that the report provided a ‘health check’ by reviewing the seven 
principles of public life.  She further advised that it was important that future 
training incorporates the recommendations set out in the report with scrutiny of 
standards being a deterrent in itself. 
 
Members welcomed the suggestion of the Members Bulletin including 
information/topics related to Standards and the Code of Conduct and a refresh of 
Code of Conduct Training being built into the Members training plan. 
 

9. Judgement in Taylor v Honiton Town Council and East Devon District 
Council  
 
The Committee noted the report and were advised by the Assistant Director of 
Corporate and Business Services that there is very little case law in respect of 
Standards, therefore this judgement was welcomed especially as it clarifies the 
position in respect of complaints regarding Brixham Town Councillors and the 
imposition of sanctions. 

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



Standards Committee   Wednesday, 1 March 2017 
 

 

 
10. Council Meetings  

 
Members views were sought on current Council Meetings and their suggestions 
for improvements to Council Meetings going forward.  Members felt they were well 
run with Members comments occasionally being a little too close to the mark.  The 
Committee did express concern at the length of the meetings and felt that the start 
time should be flexible with a ridged finish time, therefore the end of the meeting 
would dictate the start time.  Members requested that the Mayor and Group 
Leaders consider this proposal. 
 
Members also requested a quick reference document of various Standing Orders 
such as Point of Personal Explanation, be published on Mod.gov for Members to 
refer to in the meeting.  Members further suggested the Chairwoman-Elect send 
an email just prior to the commencement of the Municipal Year and announce at 
the meeting the level of conduct she will expect from Members. 
 
 
 
 

Chairman/woman 

Page 5



Hearings Sub-Committee 

 
Membership 
 
A pool of members (comprising the members of the Standards Committee or nominated substitutes) who can be drawn to serve on a sub-
committee (comprising 3 members) (and 1 Brixham Town Councillor if the complaint is about a member of the Town Council.) 
 
Quorum 
 
3 members of the Sub-Committee (and 1 Brixham Town Councillor if the complaint is about a member of the Town Council). 
 

 

P
age 6

A
genda Item

 7



 

 
Selflessness I Integrity I Objectivity I Accountability I Openness I Honesty I Leadership 

 

Room GC.05 
1 Horse Guards Road 
London 
SW1A 2HQ 
 
Tel: 020 7271 2948 
 
Email: paul.bew@public-standards.gov.uk   
 
 
 
By email  

11 July 2017 
 
Setting the Standard: Strategic Plan, Annual Report 2016-17, and Forward Plan 2017-18 
 
I am pleased to enclose a copy of Setting the Standard, which includes our annual report for 2017-
18, our forward plan for 2017-18, and our strategic plan.  
 
The Committee has had a busy year. We published Striking the Balance, a ‘healthcheck’ of how 
regulatory bodies uphold the Nolan Principles; conducted follow-up research to our 2014 report 
and 2015 guidance on ethical standards for providers of public services; held a seminar on the 
conduct of referendums and an ethical standards induction session for newly elected MPs; and 
commenced a short review on the ‘reasonable limits’ for MPs’ outside interests. 
 
In 2017-18, we will publish the outcomes of our review on MPs’ outside interests; undertake a 
review of local government standards, based on a public consultation to be launched in early 
2018; and publish our follow-up research on ethical standards for providers of public services. We 
will also be looking for opportunities to work with others to consider how social media influences 
standards issues in public life; keep a watching brief on standards issues within academies and 
NHS commissioning; work with others to monitor standards issues around the conduct of 
referendums; and look for opportunities to promote reform of party funding. 
 
The Committee has a broad remit, and so in choosing areas to focus on we seek to use our 
resources where we can have the greatest impact, often where scrutiny by other bodies or 
regulators is not already taking place. 
 
Being alert to emerging standards issues is an important part of our work, and so I would be very 
pleased to hear from you with suggestions for particular issues that the Committee should 
consider, or if there are opportunities to collaborate with your organisation. 
 
Yours sincerely, 

 
Lord Bew 
Chair, Committee on Standards in Public Life 

 
 
 
 

	  
	  
	  

	  
 
 
 

Committee on 
Standards in 
Public Life 
	  
	  

Page 7

Agenda Item 8



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Committee on 

Standards 

in Public Life 

Setting the Standard 

Strategic Plan 

Annual Report      2016-17 

Forward Plan        2017-18 

Page 8

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1



 

 

 

 

 

  

These principles apply to all aspects of publi life. The Committee has set them out 

here for the benefit of all who serve the public in any way. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

THE SEVEN PRINCIPLES OF PUBLIC LIFE 
 
The Seven Principles of Public Life apply to anyone who works as a public office holder. This includes 
all those who are elected or appointed to public office, nationally and locally, and all people appointed 
to work in the civil service, local government, the police, courts and probation services, NDPBs, and 
in the health, education, social and care services. All public office holders are servants of the public 
and stewards of public resources. The Principles also apply to all those in other sectors delivering 
public services.  
 
 

SELFLESSNESS 
 
Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest.  
 
 

INTEGRITY 
 
Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any obligation to people or 
organisations that might try inappropriately to influence them in their work. They should not act or 
take decisions in order to gain financial or other material benefits for themselves, their family, or their 
friends. They must declare and resolve any interests and relationships.  
 

OBJECTIVITY 
 
Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly and on merit, using the best 
evidence and without discrimination or bias.  
 

ACCOUNTABILITY 
  
Holders of public office are accountable to the public for their decisions and actions and must submit 
themselves to the scrutiny necessary to ensure this.  
 

OPENNESS 
 
Holders of public office should act and take decisions in an open and transparent manner. Information 
should not be withheld from the public unless there are clear and lawful reasons for so doing.  
 

HONESTY 
 
Holders of public office should be truthful. 

 

LEADERSHIP 
 
Holders of public office should exhibit these principles in their own behaviour. They should actively 
promote and robustly support the principles and be willing to challenge poor behaviour wherever it 
occurs.  
 
 
 

The Seven Principles were established in the Committee’s First Report in 1995; the accompanying descriptors were revised following a review in the 
Fourteenth Report, published in January 2013.  

 
 

 
  

Page 9

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/348304/Standards_Matter.pdf


 

 

Foreword 
 

I am delighted to present the Committee on Standards in Public Life’s Strategic Plan, Annual Report 

2016-2017, and Forward Plan 2017-18. In this document the Committee sets out its purpose and focus, 

and identifies our strategic objectives and how we intend to achieve them.    

Since its creation in 1994, the Committee has made recommendations for reform to uphold the highest 

standards of ethical conduct across public life. These recommendations shape how we talk and think 

about ethical standards: the Seven Nolan Principles are the widely accepted cornerstone of ethical 

standards for people working across all areas of public life.    

The purposes of the Committee are clear: we examine areas of concern about the standards of conduct 

of public office holders and promote the highest standards of conduct across public life. To fulfil this 

remit, we develop well-argued, evidence-based, practical recommendations to help bolster ethical 

standards. We undertake tailored and substantial research projects focused on addressing particular 

areas of public life.  We are also alert, proactively identifying and responding to emerging ethical risks, 

and listening to the public and a wide range of organisations to remain responsive to emerging risks in 

standards. 

In 2016-17, we considered issues across public life from regulatory bodies to referendums, and party 

funding to induction for new MPs, to reinforce the importance of the Nolan Principles and emphasise 

their relevance in fast-changing times. In September 2016 we launched our report on regulators, Striking 

the Balance - Upholding the Seven Principles of Public Life in Regulation. In 2017-18 we will publish the 

findings of our current review on  ‘reasonable limits’ for MPs’ outside interests, and work with a wide 

range of audiences to address other standards issues.  

The new Parliament provides an opportunity for everyone in public life to reflect on their standards of 

conduct, both what they do well and what can be improved. As the process of negotiating and 

scrutinising the UK’s departure from the EU begins, honesty and integrity in political discourse has never 

been more important. We call on all public office holders to consider how they can incorporate the Seven 

Principles into their daily work to promote public trust and confidence as we face the challenges ahead. 

Finally, I extend my warmest thanks to our departing Committee members. Dame Angela Watkinson 

DBE and Richard Thomas CBE have both made invaluable contributions to the Committee. Richard’s 

contribution to Striking the Balance in particular was fundamental to the report’s success. Their 

insightful and thoughtful contributions to our work will be sorely missed and we wish them both well in 

their future endeavours.  

 

Lord Bew 

Chair  

Page 10



 

 

 

CSPL 
 

Year in 

Review 

August 2016 

We publish research by Dr 

Michael Pinto-Duschinsky on 

party funding expenditure from 

2011 to 2016. 

 

 
September 2016 

We launch our report on 

regulators - Striking the 

Balance: Upholding the Seven 

Principles of Public Life in 

Regulation, which identifies a 

series of ‘best practice’ 

benchmarks for regulators and 

makes recommendations to the 

government. 

 

Jane Ramsey joins the 

Committee. 

October 2016 

We submit evidence to 

the Independent Parliamentary 

Standards Authority’s review of 

the MPs’ Scheme of Business 

Costs and Expenses. 

November 2016 

The Committee hosts a seminar 

on the conduct of 

referendums, which brings 

together a range of interested 

stakeholders from politics, the 

media, regulators and academia.  

 

Lord Bew presents the research 

commissioned by the Committee 

into party funding in the House 

of Lords.  

 

December 2016 

The Rt Hon Lord Stunell OBE 

joins the Committee as the 

Liberal Democrat member.  

 

 January 2017 

Working paper on the conduct 

of referendums is published on 

our website, along with video 

footage of the event. 

Dr Jane Martin CBE joins the 

Committee. 

February 2017 

We issue our follow-up survey 

on the Striking the Balance 

report to regulatory bodies.  

We hold meetings with Public 

Service Providers, as part of 

the follow-up research to our 

2014 report and 2015 guidance.   

March 2017 

The Committee announces a 

short review on the subject of 

MPs’ Outside Interests, and 

invites public submissions. The 

review is focused on the 

‘reasonable limits’ for MPs’ 

outside interests.  

 
 

We make a submission to the 

Commons Culture, Media and 

Sport Committee’s inquiry into 

the impact of 'fake news' on 

modern democracy. 

 
April 2017 

We consider the submissions 

made to our on-going short 

review on MPs’ Outside 

Interests. 

 
May 2017 

The Committee does not make 

any public statements during the 

pre-election period.  

June 2017 

After the 2017 General Election, 

we deliver a session on the 

Seven Principles and 

maintaining ethical standards as 

part of the House Authorities’ 

induction for new MPs. 

Page 11



 

 

Table of Contents 

1. Strategic Plan ........................................................................................................................................... 1 

Our strategic purpose and focus ............................................................................................................. 1 

Our strategic objectives ........................................................................................................................... 1 

Measuring our effectiveness ................................................................................................................... 2 

Setting priorities and work balance ......................................................................................................... 2 

Selection of inquiries ............................................................................................................................... 3 

Evidence gathering .................................................................................................................................. 3 

Taking opportunities for our voice to be heard ...................................................................................... 3 

Monitoring wider standards issues ......................................................................................................... 4 

Communications ...................................................................................................................................... 4 

Using our resources to best effect .......................................................................................................... 4 

2. Overview of Activities 2016-17 ............................................................................................................... 5 

Striking the Balance: Upholding the Seven Principles of Public Life in Regulation ................................. 5 

The Conduct of Referendums .................................................................................................................. 6 

‘Fake News’ .............................................................................................................................................. 6 

Party Funding ........................................................................................................................................... 7 

Local Government Standards .................................................................................................................. 7 

Ethical Standards for Providers of Public Services .................................................................................. 8 

MPs’ Outside Interests ............................................................................................................................ 9 

MPs’ Business Costs and Expenses .......................................................................................................... 9 

Induction for MPs .................................................................................................................................. 10 

House of Lords ....................................................................................................................................... 10 

Public Appointments ............................................................................................................................. 10 

3. Representation, Speeches and Communication 2016-17 ..................................................................... 12 

4. Forward Plan 2017-18 ........................................................................................................................... 14 

Research and Reports ............................................................................................................................ 14 

Watching Brief ....................................................................................................................................... 15 

Annex A: About the Committee ................................................................................................................ 16 

Annex B: Our Membership ........................................................................................................................ 18 

Annex C: Triennial Review 2013 ................................................................................................................ 25 

Annex D: Financial Information ................................................................................................................. 27 

Annex E: Reports and Publications ............................................................................................................ 28 

 

  

Page 12



 

1 

1. Strategic Plan 
Our strategic purpose and focus  

The Committee was established in 1994 with a clear purpose: to examine areas of concern about 

the standards of conduct of public office holders, advise the Prime Minister accordingly, and to 

promote the highest standards of conduct across public life. 

1.1 Over the lifetime of this strategic plan, our vision is to reinforce clear expectations across public 

life of excellent ethical standards.  Our remit extends to all those holding public office, and those 

providing public services.  As a standing committee we have a constant presence, which enables 

us to monitor progress on different issues (including our own recommendations) over time.  It 

also enables us to respond in a timely way when concerns arise.  

1.2 The maintenance of high standards in public life is important for the good functioning of society 

as a whole, helps maintain public trust in institutions, and is important for democracy. High 

standards of conduct underpin public confidence in every aspect of public life, from the delivery 

of health and social care services to education, policing and legislation.  

1.3 The Committee is uniquely placed to consider the ‘ethics landscape’ as a whole, and will work 

to serve the public by striving to ensure the Nolan Principles are understood and embedded in 

public life.  

1.4 It is a wide landscape, so we are committed to working with others to ensure this vision is met.  

We will identify particular areas of concern and consider those issues in more depth. 

Our strategic objectives 

1.5 The Committee will: 

 Identify areas of concern in terms of conduct and behaviours before they develop into 

activities which could lead to a breach of public trust 

 Undertake balanced, comprehensive inquiries, based on robust and effective research.  

We will use the research gathered in these inquiries to develop evidence-based, practical 

recommendations to help maintain or improve ethical standards across the public sector; 

 We will make informed contributions to 

public debates about ethical standards, 

including submissions to public consultations 

and on-going inquiries by parliamentary 

committees; 

 We will be alert, proactively identifying and 

responding to emerging ethical risks and 

engaging with a wide range of partners to 

develop the ethical standards agenda. 

During this timeframe in particular 

there is a heightened requirement for 

honesty and integrity in political 

discourse, especially during the 

process of negotiating and scrutinising 

the UK’s departure from the EU.  We 

will keep a close watching brief on 

standards of conduct around these 

issues. 
 

Page 13



 

2 

1.6 We are committed to ensuring that we continue to be an effective, efficient organisation 

delivering value for money. 

Measuring our effectiveness 

1.7 As an advisory body with no statutory powers to enforce our recommendations, it is not always 

easy to measure our impact directly.  Our effectiveness depends on our ability to build powerful 

arguments using research, and evidence which convinces others to take forward our 

recommendations for change.  

1.8 The following indicators help to gauge our performance. We will refine and elaborate on these 

during the life of this strategic plan in the light of experience: 

 Delivering well-researched, balanced reports which identify ways to improve and 

maintain ethical standards in the public sector, together with other proactive outputs as 

specific issues arise; 

 Making practical recommendations which are evidence-based and persuasive; 

 Maintaining our own openness and accountability to the public (including our website, 

public consultations and research surveys); and 

 Working with key stakeholders and partners through seminars and meetings. 

Setting priorities and work balance 

1.9 We anticipate that the majority of our time will be spent on our proactive work i.e. our 

substantive inquiries, research and follow-up which enable us to make a contribution from our 

unique vantage point. 

1.10 We will also continue to make submissions to Select Committee inquiries and other 

consultations so that we can collaborate with others on important issues.  We will use resources 

effectively to ensure that time spent responding to inquiries and consultations initiated by 

others does not crowd out priority work.  

1.11 Should any immediate and pressing issues arise, we would rearrange our priorities as necessary. 

1.12 The Committee aims to make valid, evidence-based contributions to inform and stimulate public 

debate; this relies on consultation with other bodies and research organisations. We will 

continue to bring together key stakeholders for thoughtful and engaging seminars. 

1.13 We will ensure that our reports and reactive contributions draw together reliable evidence with 

regard to the principles of public life.   

1.14 The Committee recognises the social media and technological changes that have substantially 

altered the relationship between the public and public office holders.  We must seek to meet 

the challenge of maintaining relevance, communicating with the public appropriately, and 

responding quickly to new issues as they arise, whilst still making measured and evidence-based 

contributions to any debate. 

 

Page 14



 

3 

Selection of inquiries 

1.15 The choice and scope of our inquiries is informed by our assessment of the importance of the 

issue, the scope for the Committee to make a distinctive and authoritative contribution, and its 

potential impact.   

1.16 In each inquiry we set out to make recommendations or identify areas of best practice which 

will encourage the highest standards of propriety in public life.  We will continue our practice of 

following-up our recommendations to monitor our impact. 

Evidence gathering 

1.17 The Committee will use appropriate methods to gather evidence, depending on the subject in 

hand.  These may include: 

 One-to-one meetings with stakeholders; 

 Roundtables, seminars and workshops; 

 Undertaking public consultations; 

 Independent surveys initiated by the Committee, and submitting questions to panel surveys; 

 Attending external events; 

 Desk-based research; 

 Commissioning academic research, including from the Economic and Social Research 

Council (ESRC) CASE studentship at the University of Nottingham; and 

 Consulting with the Committee’s Research Advisory Board. 

Taking opportunities for our voice to be heard   

1.18  In addition to inquiries and monitoring standards issues, we will take the lead and ensure our 

voice is heard promoting high ethical standards, including by: 

 Advising the Prime Minister, ministers and others on key issues;  

 Contributing to Select Committees’ inquiries in both Houses; 

 Ensuring our reports are shared with the appropriate audiences; 

 Participating in conferences, seminars and workshops;  

 Writing articles and delivering speeches to communicate our key messages;  

 Speaking to the media; and 

 Communicating with the public and partners through our website, blogs and social media 

presence.  

 

 

Page 15



 

4 

Monitoring wider standards issues  

1.19  The Committee is not complacent, and ethical issues have not gone away, so to fulfil our remit 

to consider ethical standards across the public sector we will: 

 Maintain a watching brief to identify emerging or persistent ethical standards issues, and be 

quick to highlight their significance to those best placed 

to respond; 

 Work with partners to undertake quantitative and 

qualitative research into public perceptions of ethical 

standards; and 

 Respond to consultations, key policy announcements 

and legislation where these impact on ethical standards 

and we have an informed contribution to make. 

Communications 

 

The Committee is concerned about 
how to combat social media’s 
misappropriation of facts. Social 
media can inaccurately shape 
political discourse and public 
debate.  This is a key area for the 
Committee’s watching brief, and we 
will be alert to monitoring social 

media’s impact. 
 

1.20  We will ensure that our website provides an effective means of communicating our views and 

activities, as well as full corporate transparency data including: 

 Details of our external meetings; 

 Committee meeting agendas and minutes; 

 Quantitative data and evidence received; and 

 The Committee’s register of interests.  

1.21  We will make full use of blogging, Twitter and other social media platforms. 

We are fully committed to openness in all our activities.  We will ensure that we communicate our 

work effectively, making it visible to everyone with an interest in ethical standards. 

Using our resources to best effect  

1.22  The Committee will continue to exercise efficiency, including in the following ways: 

 Research: For research into public attitudes to ethical standards, our Research Advisory 

Board will continue to add questions to panel surveys being undertaken by other 

organisations, rather than prioritise stand-alone pieces of quantitative research.   

 Interactions with stakeholders: We will think creatively about how to ensure we are 

accessible in an efficient, cost-effective way, for example by issuing online consultation 

papers and surveys, holding roundtables and conducting interviews locally.  
 

 Administrative processes: All services (including travel, accommodation, IT and human 

resources) are obtained wherever possible through the Cabinet Office to benefit from 

economies of scale.  

 

Page 16



 

5 

2. Overview of Activities 2016-17 
 

2.1 We have delivered against our 2016-17 forward plan and gone further.  

Striking the Balance: Upholding the Seven Principles of Public Life in Regulation 

2.2 In September 2016 we launched our report, Striking 

the Balance: Upholding the Seven Principles of Public 

Life in Regulation, on ethical standards for regulatory 

bodies. This report identified a series of ‘best practice’ 

benchmarks for regulators and made 

recommendations to the Government on how 

regulatory bodies can be supported to uphold the 

Seven Principles. The Committee grouped its best 

practice recommendations for regulatory bodies into 

six key areas, so that all regulatory bodies can check 

the approach of their own organisation against the 

ethical standards they should be upholding.   

2.3 Our report on this topic was not prompted by any particular event, but constituted a ‘health-

check’ of the way in which regulators manage ethical issues in their own organisations. We were 

interested in the extent to which the unique characteristics of regulators create or demand any 

specifically tailored ethical solutions. 

2.4 The report was based on extensive research including face-to-face interviews with 

representatives of regulatory bodies, a survey of regulators, three roundtables, commissioned 

academic work, and desk research. The Committee was broadly reassured by its findings. During 

the course of the review, however, we came across some variation in ethical standards which 

caused us some concern. The Committee hopes this report will be considered by all public bodies 

which perform a regulatory function, and provide a benchmark for these organisations.  

2.5 The report was published alongside a blog from Committee Member Richard Thomas which 

emphasised how important the issue of high ethical standards for regulatory bodies will be in 

the UK post-Brexit. A blog by Dr Sarah Devaney provided her thoughts on how best practice can 

be adopted in healthcare regulation. A further blog by Richard Thomas in February 2017 

addressed news stories around that time about the ‘revolving door’ between regulatory bodies 

and the sector they regulate.  

2.6 In Spring 2017, the Committee issued a follow-up survey to all regulatory bodies to see how our 

report has been used by regulators, and to see if there has been any progress within regulatory 

bodies in line with the report’s recommendations. We will report on the findings from this 

survey in late 2017. 

Page 17

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/committee-on-standards-in-public-life-annual-report-2015-2016
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/striking-the-balance-upholding-the-7-principles-in-regulation
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/striking-the-balance-upholding-the-7-principles-in-regulation
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/striking-the-balance-upholding-the-7-principles-in-regulation
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-7-principles-of-public-life/the-7-principles-of-public-life--2
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/annexes-to-ethics-for-regulators-report
https://cspl.blog.gov.uk/2016/09/05/regulators-striking-the-balance/
https://cspl.blog.gov.uk/2016/09/19/adopting-best-practice-in-healthcare-regulation/
https://cspl.blog.gov.uk/2017/02/08/regulators-and-the-revolving-door/


 

6 

The Conduct of Referendums 

2.7 There have been four referendums in the last five years: Welsh devolution (2011); the 

Westminster electoral system (2011); Scottish independence (2014); and EU membership 

(2016). These have tested the legislative framework for referendums put in place in 2000. The 

Committee has maintained an interest in the conduct and operation of referendums.  

2.8 After the 2016 referendum on the UK’s membership of the EU,  members of the public wrote to 

the Committee  to express their concern about how the referendum was conducted. The 

Committee wrote to the Public Administration and Constitutional Affairs Committee as part of 

their evidence collection for their inquiry into lessons learned from the EU referendum 2016 to 

inform them that we intended to host a seminar on this topic. 

2.9 On 22 November 2016, we held a joint seminar with University College London’s Constitution 

Unit on the impact of referendums in the UK.  

2.10 The Committee invited individuals from a range of disciplines and positions to a broad discussion 

around the themes of: 

 What are the problems? 

 How are referendums in the UK 

conducted? 

 Can we draw lessons from elsewhere? 

 What ideas are worth pursuing in the 

future? 

2.11 A transcript of the seminar was published on our website in December 2016 and a working paper 

was published online in January 2017. This event, and the follow-up work, provided a fruitful 

platform for discussion on the issues surrounding the conduct of referendums across a range of 

stakeholders.  

2.12 Following on from this seminar, we have been involved in regular meetings with relevant 

regulatory bodies and broadcasting representatives to discuss how referendums can be 

conducted in a way in which fosters public trust. We will continue to engage in this issue in the 

year ahead.  

‘Fake News’ 

2.13 The Committee is concerned with upholding the Nolan Principles across public life. These 

principles include integrity, honesty and leadership. As such, the Committee has been paying 

close attention to the developments in ‘fake news’.  

2.14 In March 2017, we made a submission to the House of Commons Culture, Media and Sport 

Select Committee’s  inquiry into the impact of 'fake news' on modern democracy. In the 

submission we expressed our concern that if the publication of ‘fake news’ is tolerated to the 

extent that it became commonplace, there would inevitably be grave consequences for public 

attitudes, democratic processes and for the conduct of public life.  

Page 18

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/letter-to-pacac-inquiry-into-lessons-learned-from-the-eu-referendum
https://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/public-administration-and-constitutional-affairs-committee/
https://www.ucl.ac.uk/constitution-unit/
https://www.ucl.ac.uk/constitution-unit/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/committee-publishes-transcript-of-seminar-on-referendums
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/committee-publishes-paper-on-referendum-seminar
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-7-principles-of-public-life
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/committee-submits-evidence-on-fake-news
https://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/culture-media-and-sport-committee/
https://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/culture-media-and-sport-committee/


 

7 

2.15 This submission was published alongside a blog by Committee member Richard Thomas, which 

discussed whether ‘fake news’ was having a negative impact on public trust in politics and 

political institutions.   

Party Funding 

2.16 The Committee has maintained a long-standing interest in the subject of party funding and our 

2011 report on party funding came to prominence again in 2016 when the House of Lords 

appointed a Select Committee to consider the impact of clauses 10 and 11 of the Trade Union 

Bill in relation to our 2011 report: Political Party Finance: Ending the Big Donor Culture. 

2.17 In February 2016, our Chair, Lord Bew, gave oral evidence to this Select Committee, at which he 

emphasised the changes in the landscape of party funding in Britain and committed to 

undertake further work on this topic.  

2.18 Accordingly, in August 2016, the Committee published research by Dr Michael Pinto-Duschinsky  

which was commissioned by the Committee and updated his 2011 analysis of British party and 

parliamentary candidate expenditure and funding. This analysis provided an insight into the 

changing structure of British party funding over the past five years.  

2.19 To coincide with the publication of that research, the Committee wrote to the leaders of the 

major political parties in Great Britain to encourage the exploration of a package of ‘small 

reforms’ which could gain cross-party consensus, to try to build public confidence in the integrity 

of the funding of political parties. 

2.20 In September 2016, we published research on public 

attitudes to party funding by Dee Goddard which was 

commissioned by the Committee. This analysis of 

data from the British Election Study suggests that the 

public thinks that the issue of party funding is 

important, but they are much less clear about what 

should be done about this. 

2.21 Lord Bew presented both of these pieces of research 

in the House of Lords in November 2016. In March 

2017, Lord Bew also spoke in the Second Reading on 

Lord Tyler’s Private Member’s Bill on party funding 

and expenditure. Lord Bew raised the issues of third 

party funding, how developments in social media 

campaigning are impacting on party funding and 

spending patterns, as well as the lack of 

transparency in the funding of parties in Northern 

Ireland.  

Local Government Standards 

2.22 As detailed in the 2015-16 Forward Plan, the Committee maintains a watching brief on local 

government standards, and regularly receives correspondence on the issue. We have begun to 

Page 19

https://cspl.blog.gov.uk/2017/03/06/fake-news-and-the-nolan-principles/
https://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/lords-select/trade-union-party-funding/role/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/political-party-finance-ending-the-big-donor-culture
http://data.parliament.uk/writtenevidence/committeeevidence.svc/evidencedocument/trade-union-political-funds-and-political-party-funding-committee/trade-union-political-funds-and-political-party-funding/oral/28891.html
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/research-into-party-expenditures-and-funding-2010-2015
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/research-into-party-expenditures-and-funding-2010-2015
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/public-attitudes-to-party-funding-in-britain
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/public-attitudes-to-party-funding-in-britain
https://hansard.parliament.uk/Lords/2016-11-03/debates/93DCA0CA-9B60-45CF-9A05-87E0EDE5A788/PartyFundingReform?highlight=Duschinsky#contribution-1C5DF002-AA2B-4394-9345-8F6F4F1F6727
https://hansard.parliament.uk/Lords/2017-03-10/debates/1D38C861-5F7A-4590-A37F-D10FAF58877E/PoliticalParties(FundingAndExpenditure)Bill(HL)#contribution-0D3A19B3-F5A6-4EF2-8145-BF5C67988B39


 

8 

engage with key stakeholders in identifying areas of concern to the Committee surrounding the 

conduct of elected and co-opted local authority members. 

2.23 In March 2017 the Committee submitted evidence to the Commons Communities and Local 

Government Select Committee on local government scrutiny. In this submission we drew 

attention to the findings from our 2015 report Tone from the top - leadership, ethics and 

accountability in policing.  

2.24 This submission set out how accountability is an essential element in creating a culture where 

high standards of behaviour are the norm. In particular, effective, independent scrutiny is 

required in between the four-yearly election cycle to maintain accountability. We encourage the 

new Communities and Local Government Select Committee to take up this issue in the new 

Parliament.  

2.25 In our 2013 report Standards Matter, we outlined our concerns at the time about the issues that 

may arise in local government standards following the Localism Act of 2011: 

 ‘The new, slimmed down arrangements have yet to prove themselves sufficient for their 

purpose. We have considerable doubt that they will succeed in doing so and intend to 

monitor the situation closely’.  

2.26 The Committee intends to undertake a review of local government standards during 2017-18. 

Further details regarding this are set out in the 2017-18 Forward Plan (p. 19). 

Ethical Standards for Providers of Public Services 

2.27 In 2013 our remit was extended to examine standards of conduct of ‘all those involved in the 

delivery of public services, not solely those appointed or elected to public office.’ As part of this 

remit, the Committee published a report in 2014 entitled Ethical standards for providers of 

public services, which made a number of recommendations to Government to ensure that 

proportionate ethical standards are made explicit in commissioning, contracting and monitoring 

arrangements for all those delivering public services. 

2.28 In 2015, the Committee published online guidance addressed to providers of public services – 

whether outsourced or in-house – to promote high ethical standards. This guidance included 

practical examples and case studies for service providers. 

2.29 Three years on from the Committee’s original research phase on this subject, we decided to 

undertake some follow-up research. The aim of this follow-up work is to examine whether there 

have been changes in how providers uphold ethical standards since our 2014 report, and assess 

how providers have used our guidance. We will also be looking at how Government has 

responded to our recommendations for transparent commissioning based on ethical 

expectations. 

2.30 Sheila Drew Smith, the lead Committee member on this work, delivered a speech to the CIPFA 

Annual Governance and Counter Fraud Summit in October 2016. In the speech we emphasised 

the importance of upholding the Seven Principles to promote public trust and demonstrate a 

commitment to good governance.  

Page 20

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/committee-submits-evidence-on-local-government-scrutiny
http://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/communities-and-local-government-committee/
http://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/communities-and-local-government-committee/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/tone-from-the-top-leadership-ethics-and-accountability-in-policing
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/tone-from-the-top-leadership-ethics-and-accountability-in-policing
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/standards-matter-thirteenth-report-of-the-committee-on-standards-in-public-life
https://www.publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201213/cmhansrd/cm130205/wmstext/130205m0001.htm
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/ethical-standards-for-providers-of-public-services
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/ethical-standards-for-providers-of-public-services
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/online-guidance-on-ethical-standards-for-public-service-providers
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/ethical-standards-for-providers-of-public-services-follow-up
https://www.cipfa.org/
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/counter-fraud-events-material/future-focused-governance-cipfa-governance-and-counter-fraud-annual-summit-2016


 

9 

2.31 In January 2017, we wrote to the Public Accounts Select Committee to draw their attention to 

our 2014 report and 2015 guidance when considering evidence for their inquiry into the Crown 

Commercial Service. During 2017, the Committee has undertaken a number of interviews with 

relevant organisations, and we will publish our findings in a short report later in 2017.  

MPs’ Outside Interests 

2.32 After maintaining a watching brief on matters surrounding parliamentary standards for many 

years, in March 2017 the Committee launched a short review on the subject of MPs’ outside 

interests.   

2.33 The Committee last looked at this issue as part of its inquiry into MPs’ expenses in 2009 and 

recommended that: 

 MPs should remain free to undertake some paid activity outside the House of Commons, 

provided it is kept within reasonable limits and there is transparency about the nature of the 

activity and the amount of time spent on it; 

 Consideration should be given to ways of increasing the accessibility and usability of the 

Register of Members’ Financial Interests; 

 MPs should be required to register positions of responsibility in voluntary or charitable 

organisations, even if unpaid, together with an indication of the amount of time spent on 

them; and 

 All candidates at parliamentary elections should publish, at nomination, a register of interests 

including the existence of other paid jobs and whether they intend to continue to hold them, 

if elected. 

2.34 The Committee decided to make a further submission on ‘reasonable limits’ for outside interests 

to the Commons Committee on Standards, which holds responsibility for reviewing the Code of 

Conduct for MPs. We had previously given oral evidence to the Parliamentary Commissioner for 

Standards’ review of the Code in March 2016. In January 2017 we followed this with a 

submission of written evidence, which included the recommendation that a rule should be 

introduced which states that outside employment should not conflict with responsibilities under 

the Code of Conduct. 

2.35 The work programme for this report has been delayed by the 2017 General Election, and the 

pre-election period restrictions for public bodies. We will hold a seminar to discuss the themes 

surrounding on MPs’ outside interests in September, and report on this subject in Autumn 2017.  

MPs’ Business Costs and Expenses 

2.36 Further to our review of MPs’ outside interests, the Committee maintains a keen interest in 

parliamentary standards more broadly. As part of this, in October 2016 the Committee 

submitted evidence to the Independent Parliamentary Standards Authority’s (IPSA) review of 

the MPs’ Scheme of Business Costs and Expenses.  

 

Page 21

http://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/public-accounts-committee/
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/336903/MP_expenses_main_report.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/mps-outside-interests-committee-announces-short-review
http://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/standards/
http://data.parliament.uk/writtenevidence/committeeevidence.svc/evidencedocument/committee-on-standards/the-code-of-conduct-and-the-guide-to-the-rules/oral/30878.html
http://www.parliament.uk/mps-lords-and-offices/standards-and-financial-interests/parliamentary-commissioner-for-standards/
http://www.parliament.uk/mps-lords-and-offices/standards-and-financial-interests/parliamentary-commissioner-for-standards/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/committee-submits-evidence-on-mps-code-of-conduct
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/election-guidance-for-civil-servants/general-election-2017-guidance-for-civil-servants
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/cspl-response-to-ipsa-review-of-the-mps-scheme-of-business-costs
http://www.theipsa.org.uk/


 

10 

2.37 This submission focused on four key areas: 

 The fundamental principles of the scheme;  

 Employment of connected parties and financial support to MPs’ families;  

 The boundary between parliamentary and party political activity; and 

 Questions about IPSA’s publication policy.  

2.38 Political members of the Committee were advised to abstain from contributing to this 

submission.  

2.39 The revised scheme was published in March 2017 and the Committee welcomed in particular 

IPSA’s decision to end payment to new ‘connected parties’.  

Induction for MPs 

2.40 In the Committee’s first report Lord Nolan wrote: 

‘More needs to be done to promote and reinforce standards of conduct in public bodies, 

in particular through guidance and training, including induction training’ 

2.41 The Committee has long been a strong advocate of induction training on ethical standards for 

public office holders. As such, we have been regularly involved in ethical induction sessions for 

parliamentarians. These have included the induction of 93% of the new MPs elected in 2015, 

and new Peers appointed in 2016. 

2.42 Following the successes in the turnout and response to these induction events, most recently 

we were involved in the induction of the 99 new MPs elected in 2017. We emphasised to new 

members the importance of testing all assumptions and behaviour against the Seven Principles 

of Public Life and encouraged the new MPs to seek advice on ethical standards issues. 

House of Lords 

2.43 In December 2016, we submitted evidence to the Public Administration and Constitutional 

Affairs Committee’s inquiry into the House of Lords.  

2.44 In the submission, we sought to demonstrate how the behaviour and nature of both Houses of 

Parliament can have a cumulative effect on the public’s perception of standards in public life. In 

particular, the Committee emphasised that the public’s perception of the way Peers are 

appointed could tarnish the reputation of the House and lead to concern about the cost and 

function of the second chamber. We also outlined the importance of the House of Lords’ Code 

of Conduct, and the need for the ethical induction and training for everyone in public life. 

Public Appointments 

2.45 The Committee’s first report under Lord Nolan made recommendations to guard against 

patronage in public appointments and recommended the creation of an independent 

Commissioner to oversee a fair and open appointment process for these posts. Following the 

2016 Grimstone Review of the Public Appointments Process, the Committee expressed some 

concern about the cumulative impact of the package of proposed reforms. In 2016 the 

Page 22

http://www.theipsa.org.uk/media/1608/9-mps-scheme-of-business-costs-and-expenses-2017-18.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/committee-welcomes-new-ipsa-rules-on-employing-connected-parties
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/336919/1stInquiryReport.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-7-principles-of-public-life
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-7-principles-of-public-life
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/submission-to-pacac-inquiry-into-the-house-of-lords
https://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/public-administration-and-constitutional-affairs-committee/
https://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/public-administration-and-constitutional-affairs-committee/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/better-public-appointments-review-of-the-public-appointments-process
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/cspl-submits-evidence-to-the-pacac-inquiry-on-the-grimstone-review


 

11 

Government published its new governance code for public appointments which took effect on 

1 January 2017. 

2.46 In March 2017, Peter Riddell, the Commissioner for Public Appointments (appointed in April 

2016) gave a presentation to the Committee. While we were pleased to note that the 

Commissioner secured some important changes to the rules on public appointments during his 

discussions with the Government, we believe the new regime will require continued 

monitoring and review.  

  

Page 23

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/governance-code-for-public-appointments
https://publicappointmentscommissioner.independent.gov.uk/


 

12 

3. Representation, Speeches and Communication 2016-17 
 

3.1 The Committee continues to maintain an international profile in the field of standards 

promotion by exemplifying an effective principles-based approach to standards in public life.  As 

has been the case in previous years, the Committee has found that the UK has a high 

international reputation in such matters and many other countries wish to learn from our 

experience.  The Committee will continue to host international delegations, visiting civil 

servants, scholars and students to explain how the standards framework operates in the UK. The 

Committee will also continue to contribute to the research base on standards, trust and 

compliance, both by working with national and international institutions and scholars, and by 

conducting in-house research. 

3.2 Over the course of the year, the Committee’s Chair, members and Secretariat have spoken at a 

number of events on standards issues, promoting the work of the Committee and the 

importance of the Seven Principles of Public Life and providing other examples of best practice, 

including:  

 15/09/2016 - Cayman Island Government Delegation 

 04/10/2016 - CIPFA Governance Summit 

 18/10/2016 - General Pharmaceutical Council Roundtable 

 16/11/2016 - Commonwealth Members Delegation 

 06/12/2016 - Pacific Alliance Delegation 

 02/02/2017 - Mozambican Parliamentary Delegation 

 28/06/2017 - Group of States against Corruption (GRECO Council of Europe) 

3.3 The Committee has also been proactive in promoting the Seven Principles of Public Life through 

responses to a number of consultations, including: 

 September 2016: Public Administration and Constitutional Affairs Committee, Lessons 

Learned from the EU Referendum 

 October 2016: Independent Parliamentary Standards Authority, Review of the MPs' Scheme 

of Business Costs, Expenses and Publication Policy 

 November 2016: Parliamentary Commissioner for Standards, Review of the Code of Conduct 

and Guide to the Rules 

 December 2016: Public Administration and Constitutional Affairs Committee, The House of 

Lords: An effective second chamber? 

 January 2017: Public Accounts Committee, Inquiry into the Crown Commercial Service  

 March 2017: Culture, Media and Sport Select Committee, Inquiry into ‘Fake News’ 

 March 2017: Communities and Local Government Select Committee, Inquiry into Overview 

and Scrutiny in Local Government 

Page 24

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/letter-to-pacac-inquiry-into-lessons-learned-from-the-eu-referendum
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/letter-to-pacac-inquiry-into-lessons-learned-from-the-eu-referendum
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/committee-submits-evidence-on-mps-code-of-conduct
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/submission-to-pacac-inquiry-into-the-house-of-lords
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/letter-to-pac-inquiry-into-the-crown-commercial-service
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/committee-submits-evidence-on-fake-news
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/committee-submits-evidence-on-local-government-scrutiny


 

13 

3.4 The Secretariat regularly receives and responds to public queries and correspondence on 

standards issues, including requests under the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 

Online Communications 

3.5 As set out in our Strategic Plan, we will continue to ensure that we communicate our work 

effectively, making it visible everyone. Our website, blogsite and Twitter are key ways in which 

we engage with stakeholders and members of the public. 

3.6 Between 1 August 2016 and 30 May 2016, the Committee’s website received 106,525 visitors, 

and a total of 143,594 page views. The Seven Principles of Public Life page was viewed 54,625 

times over this period.  

3.7 We also have an active blogsite, and this year we have published 11 blogs. These provide a 

format for shorter pieces of comment and analysis on areas of particular interest to the 

Committee. Between 1 August 2016 and 25 May 2017, the blog homepage received 1,239 page 

views, and in total all of the blog posts received 3,941 page views. 

3.8 We will contribute to relevant policy debates where we can add an informed and distinctive 

voice, and we will engage in constructive dialogue with key stakeholders including ethical 

regulators.  

 

  

Page 25

https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/the-committee-on-standards-in-public-life
https://cspl.blog.gov.uk/
https://twitter.com/publicstandards
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/the-committee-on-standards-in-public-life
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-7-principles-of-public-life
https://cspl.blog.gov.uk/


 

14 

4. Forward Plan 2017-18 
 

4.1 As set out in the Strategic Plan, over the upcoming year we will work proactively on original 

research and reports, and reactively as standards issues arise in areas where the Committee 

maintains a watching brief.  

Research and Reports 

4.2 The areas in which we expect to act proactively in the coming year are: 

MPs’ Outside Interests 

4.3 Following a high number of detailed and thoughtful submissions from members of the public 

and other interested stakeholders, we will be publishing the findings of our review on MPs’ 

outside interests in late 2017.  

4.4 The report on MPs’ outside interests will be made publicly available on our website, and we will 

be sending a copy of the report to the Parliamentary Commissioner for Standards and the 

Commons Committee on Standards. These bodies are responsible for reviewing the Code of 

Conduct for MPs.     

Local Government Standards 

4.5 The Committee maintains a longstanding interest in local government standards, and regularly 

receives correspondence from members of the public expressing their concern about this issue. 

We were actively conducting research and engaging with partners on this subject throughout 

2016-17, and we intend to undertake a review of local government standards during 2017-18.  

4.6 This review will be based around a consultation that will be launched in early 2018. Based on 

the submissions to this review and meetings with key stakeholders, we intend to publish our 

findings and recommendations in 2018.  

Public Service Providers 

4.7 During 2016-17, we have been undertaking research to follow-up on our 2014 report and 2015 

guidance on ethical standards for providers of public services. This follow-up research has 

included meetings with relevant companies, government organisations and stakeholders, and a 

seminar with organisations representing service providers. 

4.8 We will be publishing the findings from this follow-up research in late 2017, and will use this 

opportunity to raise awareness about the importance of ethical standards issues in the delivery 

of public services across all providers.  

Impact of Social Media  

4.9 Recognising the rapidly changing and developing nature of social and political communication 

and media in recent years, throughout 2017-18 we will look for opportunities to work 

collaboratively with partners to assess how these developments are shaping public life.  

Page 26

https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/the-committee-on-standards-in-public-life
http://www.parliament.uk/mps-lords-and-offices/standards-and-financial-interests/parliamentary-commissioner-for-standards/
http://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/standards/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/ethical-standards-for-providers-of-public-services


 

15 

4.10 Engaging with others in this area will enable us to develop an understanding of how the changing 

nature of communications may influence social relations, and consider how this may influence 

how the Seven Principles are upheld across public life. 

Watching Brief 

4.11 We are committed to keeping abreast of standards issues before and while they are emerging, 

and respond as appropriate when standards issues arise. We are open to new ideas and 

suggestions on areas within the Committee’s remit which we may seek to consider in the future. 

In particular, we will keep a watching brief on the following issues: 

Party Funding 

4.12 The Committee has been actively involved in debates on the funding of political parties, and will 

continue to remain engaged on this issue throughout 2017-18. In particular, we seek to 

emphasise the importance of pursuing a package of commonly-agreed small reforms, and we 

will be working to encourage the political parties to come together to reach some agreement 

on this.  

Academies 

4.13 Following our research on public service providers, we are increasingly aware of the issues 

surrounding conflicts of interests and good governance in academies. Therefore, we will be 

keeping a watching brief on this issue over the next year. 

National Health Service 

4.14 We will also be keeping a watching brief on the NHS, where we are aware of standards issues in 

terms of commissioning and good governance. Building on our work on providers of public 

services, we will be monitoring standards issues in the NHS over the coming year.  

Conduct of Referendums 

4.15 Following our seminar on the conduct of referendums in 2016, we will continue to keep a 

watching brief on how standards relating to the conduct of referendums and their campaigns 

may be improved in any future referendums.  

4.16 We will be keeping abreast of issues in this area and working with our stakeholders to see what 

can be done in terms of ensuring that the Seven Principles are upheld, particularly with regard 

ensuring honest and truthful political debate.  

 

 

 

  

Page 27



 

16 

5. Annex A: About the Committee 
Our remit 

The Committee on Standards in Public Life monitors, reports and makes recommendations on all 

issues relating to standards in public life. 

 
5.1 The Committee has always had a broad and wide-ranging remit. On 25 October 1994, the then 

Prime Minister, the Rt. Hon. John Major, announced the establishment of the Committee on 

Standards in Public Life with the following terms of reference: 

'To examine current concerns about standards of conduct of all holders of public office, 

including arrangements relating to financial and commercial activities, and make 

recommendations as to any changes in present arrangements which might be required 

to ensure the highest standards of propriety in public life’. 

'For these purposes, public office should include: Ministers, civil servants and advisers; 

Members of Parliament and UK Members of the European Parliament; Members and 

senior officers of all non-departmental public bodies and of national health service 

bodies; non-ministerial office holders; members and other senior officers of other 

bodies discharging publicly-funded functions; and elected members and senior officers 

of local authorities'.1 

5.2 On 12 November 1997, the Committee’s terms of reference were extended by the then Prime 

Minister, the Rt. Hon. Tony Blair:  

'To review issues in relation to the funding of political parties, and to make 

recommendations as to any changes in present arrangements'.2 

5.3 On 5 February 2013, the Minister for the Cabinet Office clarified the Committee’s terms of 

reference in two respects: 

‘…in future the Committee should not inquire into matters relating to the devolved 

legislatures and governments except with the agreement of those bodies.’ 

‘…the Committee’s remit to examine ‘standards of conduct of all holders of public 

office’ [encompasses] all those involved in the delivery of public services, not solely those 

appointed or elected to public office.’3 

5.4 Our remit does not extend to individual complaints and we have no powers to investigate 

individual allegations of misconduct.  That is the role of the relevant regulator. 

 

Our status  

                                                           
1 Hansard (HC) 25 October 1994, col 758 
2 Hansard (HC) 12 November 1997, col 899 
3 Hansard (HC) 5 February 2013, col 7WS 

Page 28

http://www.publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm199798/cmhansrd/vo971112/debtext/71112-20.htm#71112-20_sbhd0


 

17 

5.5 The Committee is an independent, advisory non-departmental public body (NDPB) established 

in 1994. The Committee is not founded in statute and has no legal powers to compel witnesses 

to provide evidence or to enforce its recommendations.  

5.6 Our Secretariat and budget are provided by the Cabinet Office. 

Our independence  

5.7 To fulfil our remit effectively, it is important that we remain robustly independent of the 

Government that appoints us.  By convention, the Committee consults the Prime Minister 

before starting an inquiry, and can be asked by the Prime Minister to review a specific subject.  

But the decision on whether to proceed is our own.    

Our reports 

5.8 Committee reports take different forms; they may be in the form of a Command Paper, laid 

before Parliament, or they may be shorter reports or guidance published on our website.  

5.9 The Committee will convene seminars, roundtables, public meetings and other forms of 

evidence gathering on issues as appropriate.  

 

 

 

 

  

Page 29



 

18 

6. Annex B: Our Membership 
 

Our members  

6.1 A majority of members, including the Chair, are independent and appointed following an open 

competition regulated by the Office of the Commissioner for Public Appointments (OCPA). Three 

political members are nominated by the Conservative, Labour and Liberal Democrat political 

parties.  

6.2 Political Committee members are appointed for a three-year term, with the possibility of 

reappointment.  The current four independent members were recruited for a five-year non-

renewable term.  The Chair is also appointed for a single non-renewable five-year term. 

6.3 The Prime Minister formally appoints all Committee members. 

6.4 The Chair is appointed on the basis that they will on average spend two to three days a month 

on Committee business.  Our members are expected to commit around two days a month, for 

which they are remunerated on the basis of a daily fee (political members do not receive fees).  

Both the Chair and other members necessarily commit more days as appropriate when the 

Committee is engaged in an inquiry.  

6.5 Committee members are appraised annually. 

 

Chair: Lord Bew  

Appointed: 1 September 2013 Term ends: 31 August 2018 

Paul Bew joined Queen’s University Belfast in 1979 and was made 

Professor of Irish Politics in 1991. He acted as historical adviser to the 

Bloody Sunday Inquiry between 1998 and 2001 and was appointed as 

a non-party-political peer by the independent House of Lords 

Appointments Commission in February 2007 following his 

contributions to the Good Friday Agreement. In 2007 he served on the 

Local London Authority Bill Select Committee and in 2011 served on 

the Joint Committee on the Defamation Bill, which addressed key issues of academic freedom. He chaired the 

independent review of Key Stage 2 (SATs) provision in England which reported in 2011 and was accepted by the 

Government. He also served on the Joint Committee on Parliamentary Privilege which produced its report in July 

2013. Lord Bew is a Visiting Professor at King’s College London. Among Lord Bew’s many publications is the Ireland 

volume of the Oxford History of Modern Europe.  

 

 

 

Page 30



 

19 

Members active in 2016-2017 

Lord Alderdice 

Appointed: 1 September 2010 Reappointed: 1 September 2013  Term ended: 31 August 2016 

John Alderdice is a fellow of the Royal College of Psychiatrists.  He 

led the Alliance Party and was President of the European Liberal, 

Democrat and Reform Party and Vice President of Liberal 

International.  He was one of the negotiators of the Good Friday 

Agreement. Raised to the peerage on October 1996, he took his seat 

on the Liberal Democrat benches in the House of Lords on 5 

November that year. In 1998 Lord Alderdice was elected member for 

Belfast East and appointed Speaker of the Northern Ireland Assembly. In 2004 he was appointed as a 

Commissioner for the newly established Independent Monitoring Commission. He is currently a Senior Research 

Fellow and Director of the Centre for the Resolution of Intractable Conflict at Harris Manchester College, Oxford, 

and a Clinical Professor in the Department of Psychology at the University of Maryland. He is also the Chairman 

and a Director of the Centre for Democracy and Peace Building (based in Belfast) and President of ARTIS (Europe) 

Ltd, a research and risk analysis company. 

Rt Hon Dame Margaret Beckett DBE MP 

Appointed: 1 November 2010 Reappointed: 1 November 2013, 1 November 2016 Term ends: 31 October 2019 

Margaret Beckett has been Labour MP for Derby South since 1983. 

She was Secretary of State for Trade and Industry 1997-1998, 

President of the Council and Leader of the House of Commons 1998-

2001, Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs 

2001-2006, Secretary of State for Foreign Affairs 2006-2007, and 

Minister for Housing and Planning 2008-2009. She has also been 

Chair of the Intelligence and Security Committee. Margaret was a 

member of the Labour National Executive Committee (1980-1981, 2012-2015) and was Chair of the Joint 

Committee on National Security Strategy when Parliament was prorogued in 2017. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 31



 

20 

Patricia Moberly (deceased) 

Appointed: 17 May 2012  Term ended: 1 September 2016  

Patricia Moberly was Chair of Guy’s and St Thomas’ NHS Foundation 

Trust from 1999 to 2011. During her previous career as a 

schoolteacher, she worked in secondary schools in London and 

Zambia, and was Head of the Sixth Form at Pimlico School from 1985 

to 1998. She served on the National Executive of the Anti-Apartheid 

Movement, was a member of Area and District Health Authorities and 

of the General Medical Council, a local councillor and a magistrate. 

Patricia  worked as a prison visitor, and served on an advisory panel to the Secretary of State for Transport on 

drink and drug driving. Patricia sadly passed away in September 2016.  

Monisha Shah 

Appointed: 1 December 2015  Term ends: 30 November 2020 

Monisha is Chair of Rose Bruford College of Theatre and Performance, 

non-executive director of Imagen Ltd, Cambridge, and independent 

non-executive director of Next Mediaworks Limited, India. Monisha 

served as Trustee of Tate until July 2015. She was also Tate’s Liaison 

Trustee to the National Gallery Board from June 2013. Monisha has 

served on several panels as an Independent Member, including 

Triennial Reviews of the British Council and the British Film Institute, 

and the appointment panel for the Chair of the BFI. Monisha’s last executive role was with BBC Worldwide, where 

she worked for 10 years. Monisha is a graduate of the University of Bombay, India; she also has a post-graduate 

degree from SOAS, and an executive MBA from the London Business School. She was elected Young Global Leader 

by the World Economic Forum in February 2009. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 32



 

21 

Sheila Drew Smith OBE4 

Appointed: 17 May 2012  Term ends: 1 February 2018 

Sheila Drew Smith OBE is an economist by background.  She was an 

independent assessor for public appointments (OCPA) from 1997 to 

2012 and undertakes selection work in the private sector.  She is the 

Chair of the National Approved Letting Scheme and a committee 

member for Safe Agents. She has been a member of various 

appointment panels, including the Bar Standards Board, Network 

Rail, RICS, and a number of other regulatory bodies. In 2015 Sheila 

conducted an independent review of the governance arrangements of the Independent Police Complaints 

Commission. She was a board member of the Housing Corporation between 2002 and 2008, the Audit Commission 

between 2004 and 2010, and the Infrastructure Planning Commission and the Office of the Regulator of Social 

Housing until March 2012. Prior to this she was a partner in the predecessor firms of PricewaterhouseCoopers 

working in the UK and internationally. Her earlier career was in the civil service. 

Richard Thomas CBE 

Appointed: 17 May 2012  Term ended: 16 May 2017 

Richard Thomas CBE LLD was the Information Commissioner from 

November from 2002 to 2009 and the Chairman of the Administrative 

Justice and Tribunals Council (AJTC) from 2009 to 2013.  He is a 

Strategy Adviser to the Centre for Information Policy Leadership and 

has served as Deputy Chairman of the Consumers Association, as 

Trustee of the Whitehall and Industry Group, and as Board Member 

of the International Association of Privacy Professionals 

(IAPP).  During his earlier career his roles included Director of Consumer Affairs at the Office of Fair Trading from 

1986 to 1992 and Director of Public Policy at Clifford Chance, the international law firm, from 1992 to 2002. 

 

 

 

 

                                                           
4 Sheila Drew Smith was exceptionally reappointed in May 2017 for nine months due to the need for continuity in 

Committee membership, and to complete the follow-up work to ethical standards for public service providers. 

Page 33



 

22 

Dame Angela Watkinson DBE  
 
Appointed: 30 November 2012  Term ended: 27 April 2017  
 

After an early career in banking and a family career break, Dame 

Angela Watkinson worked for several local authorities in special 

education and central services. She served as a councillor for both 

the London Borough of Havering and an Essex County Council. 

Angela was elected as Conservative MP for Upminster in 2001 and 

continued to serve her enlarged constituency of Hornchurch and 

Upminster until standing down in the 2017 General Election. She 

spent most of her Parliamentary Career as a Whip and Lord Commissioner to the Treasury.  

Members appointed in 2016-17 

Dr Jane Martin CBE 

Appointed: 1 January 2017  Term ends: 31 December 2021 

Dr Jane Martin CBE took up her post from 1 January 2017 for a five-

year term. She has been Chair of the Commission for Local 

Administration in England since April 2012. She was appointed to the 

post of Local Government Ombudsman (LGO) and Vice-chair of the 

Commission for Local Administration in England in January 2010. Her 

seven-year term of office at the LGO ended in January 2017. 

Jane has extensive knowledge and experience of public service 

delivery. She has worked in local authorities across England as a consultant for the Improvement and 

Development Agency for Local Government, and was the first Executive Director of the Centre for Public Scrutiny. 

Prior to joining the LGO, Jane was Deputy Chief Executive at the Local Better Regulation Office and a Non-

Executive Director of Coventry Primary Care Trust. 

Jane Ramsey 

Appointed: 1 September 2016  Term ends: 31 August 2021 

Jane Ramsey took up her post on the Committee on Standards in 

Public Life on 1 September 2016 for a five-year term. Jane is 

currently also Chair of Young Epilepsy and Chair of the Children 

and Young People Steering Group for Transforming Care, NHS 

England.  

Jane was previously Chair of Cambridge University Hospitals NHS 

Foundation Trust. She joined the Trust in November 2012 from 

University College London Hospitals (UCLH) where she was Vice Chair. She has previously served on the Council 

of the Royal Pharmaceutical Society, the Department of Health Audit and Risk Committee, chaired a local 

Page 34



 

23 

Housing Association and has been Head of Law for two London boroughs. She also served on the Independent 

Commission into regeneration and wealth creation in non-Metropolitan areas established by the Local 

Government Association. 

Rt Hon Lord Stunell OBE 

Appointed: 1 December 2016  Term ends: 30 November 2019 

The Rt Hon Lord Stunell OBE is a Liberal Democrat Life Peer and joined 

the House of Lords in October 2015. On 1 December 2016 he replaced 

Lord Alderdice on the Committee who previously served as the Liberal 

Democrat member. 

Lord Stunell previously sat in the House of Commons as MP for Hazel 

Grove from 1997 to 2015. He was Parliamentary Under Secretary of 

State for Communities and Local Government from 2010 to 2012 in 

the coalition government. Lord Stunell has extensive experience 

within the Liberal Democrat party, including as Shadow Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government 

(2006 to 2007), Shadow Secretary of State for the Office of the Deputy Prime Minister (2006 to 2006) and Liberal 

Democrat Commons Chief Whip (2001 to 2006). He served as a local government councillor for 25 years from 

1979.   

Research Advisory Board 

6.6 The Committee’s work is supported by a Research Advisory Board. The current Board members 

are: 

 Professor Cees van der Eijk, Professor of Social Science Research Methods and Director of Social 

Sciences Methods and Data Institute, University of Nottingham; 

 Dr Jean Martin, Formerly Office for National Statistics and University of Oxford; 

 Professor Mark Philp (Chair), Professor, Director of the European History Research Centre and 

Director of Research, Department of History, University of Warwick; and 

 Dr Wendy Sykes, Director of Independent Social Research Ltd and Member of the Social Research 

Association’s implementation group on commissioning social research.  

6.7 The Committee also part-funds Esmeralda Bon, a PhD student at the University of Nottingham, 

through an ESRC CASE scholarship. 

Members’ attendance (1 April 2016 – 31 May 2017) 

6.8 The table below shows the total number of meetings that each member of the Committee 

could have attended and the number actually attended between 1 April 2016 and 31 May  

2017.  

Page 35



 

24 

Name Possible 

meetings 

Meetings 

attended 

Lord Bew  13 12 

Lord Alderdice 4 4 

Rt Hon Dame Margaret Beckett DBE MP 13 11 

Patricia Moberly (deceased) 4 3 

Richard Thomas CBE 13 11 

Jane Ramsey 8 8 

Sheila Drew Smith OBE 13 12 

Dame Angela Watkinson DBE 5 12 2 

Dr Jane Martin CBE 5 4 

Monisha Shah  13 11 

Rt Hon Lord Stunell OBE 6 6 

 

6.9 In addition to monthly Committee meetings, members attend a variety of other meetings and 

briefings in relation to the business of the Committee. 

Remuneration  

6.10 Independent Committee members who do not already receive a salary from public funds for the 

days in question may claim £240 for each day they work on committee business. The Chair is 

paid on the basis of a non-pensionable salary of £500 per day, with the expectation that they 

should commit an average of 2–3 days a month, although this can increase significantly during 

Committee inquiries. All independent members are reimbursed for expenses necessarily 

incurred.  

6.11 For the period 1 April 2016 to 1 March 2017, committee members other than the Chair 

claimed a total of £26,306 in fees and expenses. In total, the Chair claimed £26,090 in fees and 

expenses. 

 

 

 

  

                                                           
5 Dame Angela was on a leave of absence from the Committee between May 2016 and March 2017.  

Page 36



 

25 

7. Annex C: Triennial Review 2013 
 

7.1 On 18 September 2012, the Minister for the Cabinet Office announced the Triennial Review of 

the Committee on Standards in Public Life.  The Review confirmed the continuing need for the 

Committee as a non-departmental public body, but suggested a number of changes to the remit 

of the Committee and its way of working. 

Main recommendations of the Triennial Review 

7.2 The CSPL should be more strategic by reviewing systems, and should avoid overlapping with the 

work of sectoral regulators.  

7.3 The Committee should be bolder in picking topics, looking ahead to emerging problems, rather 

than reacting to scandals and allegations of ethical abuses which have already emerged.  

7.4 The Committee should keep a watching brief on broader ethical issues and maintain oversight, 

bringing together regulators and interested parties. But it should not either comment on the 

day-to-day work of regulators or see one of its objectives as improving public confidence or trust 

in public bodies or holders of public office.  

7.5 The terms of reference of the Committee about devolved issues need to be clarified to say that 

the we will not investigate ethical matters involving the devolved bodies unless asked to do so.  

7.6 The remit of the Committee needs to be reviewed to define more clearly the scope of the term 

‘holders of public office’ in the light of the changing role of the state and its relations with 

outside organisations. 

7.7 The Committee’s working methods need to be revised, to sharpen them up, to adjust to changes 

in the media, and to operate within a reduced budget, as has begun to happen recently. 

Consequently, the biennial research into public attitudes should cease and public hearings 

should be reduced sharply and used sparingly. 

Impact of the Triennial Review and the Committee’s Response 

7.8 The Triennial Review’s recommendations sharply altered the Committee’s pattern of working, 

its resources and gathering of direct evidence.  In particular, the Review suggested that the 

biennial surveys should cease, but that savings as a result of no longer undertaking biennial 

surveys ‘should not be used to reduce the Committee’s budget further’.  And ‘resources saved 

within the existing budget from abandoning opinion research and hearings in the devolved 

capitals could be shifted to fact-finding’.  

7.9 In practice, the intention of using the saving of the surveys to boost the Secretariat did not 

happen, and the Committee in 2016/17 operated with a budget at around 60% less than that of 

2013. However, the Committee took these recommendations on board and has moved forward 

in accordance with the Review’s conclusions.   

7.10 When considering which inquiry we should undertake, we consider the emerging political and 

social landscape and then take a reasoned, consensus view on the evidence available at the 

time. Since the publication of the report of the Review, we have produced reports on 

Page 37

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/80189/Triennial_Review_of_CSPL_Dec-2012.pdf


 

26 

Strengthening Transparency Around Lobbying; Ethical Standards for Providers of Public Services; 

Ethics in Practice: Promoting Ethical Standards in Public Life; Tone from the Top – leadership, 

ethics and accountability in policing; and most recently in 2016, Striking the Balance: Upholding 

the Seven Principles in Regulation. 

7.11 We continue to maintain a watching brief on ethical standards across the public sector, but we 

refrain from commenting on the day-to-day work of regulators unless the circumstances are 

such where there is value in our intervening. We also regularly produce blogs helping to 

communicate our views. 

7.12 In accordance with the Triennial Review’s recommendation, we have ceased our biennial 

research programme into public attitudes toward conduct in public life, saving some £50,000 

per survey.  The last report based on our survey of public attitudes toward conduct in public life 

was undertaken in 2012.   The Triennial Review also stated that ‘the end of the biennial surveys 

should not prevent the committee from commissioning other external research where it cannot 

do the work itself’.  We do therefore, look to work with other partners where we can, for 

example, in March 2015 we published a survey using data collected as part of the Hansard 

Society’s Audit of Political Engagement, and have submitted research questions as part of panel 

surveys conducted by others. For example, the Committee has regularly inputted questions to 

the British Election Study on public attitudes to party funding.  

7.13 The Committee accepts that its work cannot be viewed simply in terms of increasing public 

confidence and trust in public bodies or holders of public office. The Committee’s own research 

shows that the issue of trust is complex and that headline findings often do not capture the 

complex relationships that people have with the institutions of the modern state, nor do they 

reflect the important improvements that have occurred in many areas of the public sector.  As 

the Triennial Review recognised, valuing ethical standards is important for good governance 

even where public trust is unlikely to be directly affected by such matters.  The Committee 

believes that even though levels of trust among the general public may have declined over the 

long term, our work and successive reforms have set important benchmarks across public life.   

7.14 In accordance with the Triennial Review’s recommendation our remit now extends only to 

England.  We no longer review ethical standards in the Devolved Administrations, and will not 

investigate ethical matters involving the devolved bodies unless asked to do so.  Should we be 

invited to consider an ethical standards issue in one of the Devolved Administrations, we would 

have to consider any resourcing issues that would create, given our current budget limitations. 

7.15 We have addressed the extension of our remit to those providing public services, as evidenced 
by our 2014 report Ethical Standards for Public Service Providers and 2015 guidance. 

  

Page 38

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/strengthening-transparency-around-lobbying
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/ethical-standards-for-providers-of-public-services
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/ethics-in-practice-promoting-ethical-standards-in-public-life
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/tone-from-the-top-leadership-ethics-and-accountability-in-policing
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/tone-from-the-top-leadership-ethics-and-accountability-in-policing
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/striking-the-balance-upholding-the-7-principles-in-regulation
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/striking-the-balance-upholding-the-7-principles-in-regulation
https://cspl.blog.gov.uk/
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/415746/Survey_of_public_attitudes_towards_conduct_in_public_life_2014_final_19_march.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/336942/CSPL_EthicalStandards_web.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/585703/6.1291_CO_LAL_Ethical_standards_of_public_life_report_Interactive__2_.pdf


 

27 

8. Annex D: Financial Information 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 2: FINANCIAL 

INFORMATION 

 

  

8.1 As an advisory Non-Departmental Public Body (NDPB), the Committee receives its delegated 

budget from the Cabinet Office. Day-to-day responsibility for financial controls and budgetary 

mechanisms are delegated to the Secretary of the Committee including responsibility for certain 

levels of authorisation and methods of control. Creation of all new posts and the use of external 

resources are subject to the approval of the Cabinet Office Approvals Board.  

8.2 The Secretary and the rest of the Secretariat are permanent civil servants employed by the 

Cabinet Office or on secondment from other departments. 

8.3 Whilst the core Secretariat has been reduced to four, the Secretary can and has used the budget 

to buy-in additional time limited resource to service specific inquiries and reviews.  This level of 

resource necessarily constrains the choices the Committee makes in relation to its work 

programme and, together with the time taken to secure approvals, may affect its ability to 

respond quickly and comprehensively to standards issues as they emerge. 

8.4 The Secretary to the Committee is responsible for setting out the outputs and outcomes which 

the Committee plans to deliver with the resources for which they have delegated authority, and 

for reporting regularly on resource usage and success in delivering those plans. The Secretary is 

also responsible for maintaining a robust system of internal control over the resources for which 

she has delegated authority, and for providing the accounting officer with assurances that those 

controls are effective. 

8.5 For the financial year 2016-17, the Committee’s budget was £283,682, with an underspend of 

£16,314. This underspend was due Secretarial staff vacancies and a delayed work programme 

due to the 2017 pre-election period.   

 

 
 
 
  

Expenditure  2015-2016 

(£) 

2016-2017 

(£) 

Staff costs and fees 218,009 197,766 

Other running costs 85,423 69,602 

Total net expenditure 303,432 267,368 

Page 39



 

28 

9. Annex E: Reports and Publications 
 

9.1 The Committee has published the following reports: 

 Striking the Balance - Upholding the Seven Principles of Public Life in Regulation - (Cm 9327) 

(September 2016)  

 Tone from the top - leadership ethics and accountability in policing (Cm 9057) (June 2015) 

 Ethics in Practice: Promoting Ethical Standards in Public Life (July 2014) 

 Ethical standards for providers of public services (June 2014) 

 Strengthening transparency around lobbying (November 2013) 

 Standards matter: A review of best practice in promoting good behaviour in public life (Cm 

8519) (January 2013) 

 Political Party Finance - Ending the big donor culture (Cm 8208) (November 2011) 

 MPs’ Expenses and Allowances: Supporting Parliament, Safeguarding the Taxpayer (Cm7724) 

(November 2009) 

 Review of the Electoral Commission (Cm7006) (January 2007) 

 Getting the Balance Right: Implementing Standards of Conduct in Public Life (Cm6407) 

(January 2005) 

 Defining the Boundaries within the Executive: Ministers, Special Advisers and the permanent 

Civil Service (Cm 5775) (April 2003)  

 Standards of Conduct in the House of Commons (Cm 5663) (November 2002) 

 The First Seven Reports - A Review of Progress - a stock-take of the action taken on each of 

the 308 recommendations made in the Committee's seven reports since 1994 (September 

2001) 

 Standards of Conduct in the House of Lords (Cm 4903) (November 2000) 

 Reinforcing Standards (Cm 4557) (January 2000) 

 The Funding of Political Parties in the United Kingdom (Cm 4057) (October 1998) 

 Review of Standards of Conduct in Executive Non-Departmental Public Bodies (NDPBs), NHS 

Trusts and Local Public Spending Bodies (November 1997)      

 Standards of Conduct in Local Government in England, Scotland and Wales (Cm 3702) (July 

1997) 

 Local Public Spending Bodies (Second Report (Cm 3270) (June 1996) 

 Standards in Public Life (First Report (Cm 2850)) (May 1995) 

9.2 Between 2004 and 2012 the Committee also undertook biennial surveys of public attitudes 

towards conduct in public life.  Findings were published in 2004, 2006, 2008, 2011 and 2013

Page 40



 

29 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Standards Matter: Strategic Plan, Annual Report 2016-17 and Forward Plan 2017-18 

Published by the Committee on Standards in Public Life 

 

The Committee on Standards in Public Life 

Room GC05 

1 Horse Guards Road 

London SW1A 2HQ 

 

Tel: 020 7271 2948 

 

Internet: https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/the-committee-on-standards-in-public-life 

Email: mailto:public@public-standards.gov.uk 

 

July 2017 

 

Page 41

https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/the-committee-on-standards-in-public-life
mailto:public@public-standards.gov.uk

	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	7 Hearing Sub-Committee
	8 Setting the Standard: Strategic Plan, Annual Report 2016-17 and Forward Plan 2017-19
	CSPL Annual Report (web)
	THE SEVEN PRINCIPLES OF PUBLIC LIFE
	Foreword
	CSPLYear in Review
	Table of Contents
	1. Strategic Plan
	2. Overview of Activities 2016-17
	3. Representation, Speeches and Communication 2016-17
	4. Forward Plan 2017-18
	5. Annex A: About the Committee
	6. Annex B: Our Membership
	7. Annex C: Triennial Review 2013
	8. Annex D: Financial Information
	9. Annex E: Reports and Publications





